
 

1 
 

VILLAGE OF DOWNERS GROVE 
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 

 
MINUTES FOR MAY 7, 2018 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER: 
 
Chairman Rickard called the May 7, 2018 meeting of the Plan Commission to 
order at 7:00 p.m. and led in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
2. ROLL CALL: 
 
PRESENT:  Ch. Rickard, Mr. Boyle, Ms. Gassen, Mr. Kulovany, Ms. 
Majauskas, Mr. Maurer, Mr. Quirk, Ms. Rollins 
 
ABSENT: Ms. Johnson, Ex. Officio members Miller, Livorsi & Menninga 
 
STAFF: Planning Manager Rebecca Leitschuh  
  Sr. Village Planner Scott Williams 
  Director Community Development Stan Popovich 
   
Ch. Rickard reminded everyone present to silence any electronic devices 
during the meeting, and noted that copies of the Agenda are available on the 
shelves at either side of the Chamber. 
 
VISITORS: Elaine Kindt, Kindt & Assoc., 1325 Chapman, Darien 

Michael Hansen, Watermark Engineering, 2631 Ginger Woods, 
Aurora 
Pete Walsh, Walsh Development, Inc., 4353 Hampton, Western 
Springs 

  Kim Heller, Baird & Warner, 724 Ogden, Downers Grove 
  M. Crowell, Lemont 
  Kathleen Turza, Baird & Warner, 724 Ogden, Downers Grove 
  Michael Mueller, 1 N 174 Northway Drive 
  Mary Braatz, 5928 Carpenter, Downers Grove 
  Patti Gibbons, Baird & Warner, 724 Ogden, Downers Grove 
  William Ponstein, 6012 Hillcrest, Downers Grove 
  Jim Krusenoski, 853 Maple, Downers Grove 
  Richard Samonte, 6025 Osage, Downers Grove 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: March 5, 2018 meeting 
 
Mr. Kulovany asked that on page 10 in the second paragraph the “e” in the 
spelling of his name be removed.  
 



 

2 
 

Ms. Gassen moved, seconded by Mr. Kulovany to approve the minutes 
for the March 5, 2018 meeting as corrected.   
 
The Motion to approve the minutes as corrected passed, with Mr. Quirk 
abstaining.  
 
Ch. Rickard reviewed the procedures to be followed for the meeting, 
explaining that the Plan Commission is a recommending body for the petitions 
on the Agenda. On the Agenda are two public hearings, and a discussion on 
Plan Commission meeting formats.  Staff will make its presentation, followed 
by the Petitioner. The Commission will comment on the petition, raise 
questions to Staff and/or the Petitioner, and then the public will be given an 
opportunity to comment.  Once the Public Hearing portion of the meeting is 
closed, the Plan Commission members will deliberate to recommend 
approval, recommend approval with conditions, or recommend denial of the 
individual petition. That recommendation will be forwarded to the Village 
Council with the minutes, exhibits and all documentation from the public 
hearing on the specific petition. The Village Council will make final decisions 
at a future date. Ch. Rickard reviewed the subject matter of the two public 
hearing petitions on the Agenda, and then asked all individuals intending to 
speak during any of the public hearings to rise and be sworn in.   
 
4. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
18-PLC-0012: A petition seeking approval of a Planned Unit Development, a 
Zoning Map Amendment from R-1, Residential Detached House 1 to R-
5/PUD, Residential Attached House 5/Planned Unit Development, and a 
Final Plat of Subdivision, to construct a 13 unit townhome development. 
The property is currently zoned R-1, Residential Detached House 1. The 
property is located on the west side of Fairview Avenue, between 60th 
and 61st Streets, commonly known as 6000 and 6014 Fairview Avenue, 
Downers Grove, IL (PIN 09-17-405-010). Kindt and Associates, Petitioner 
and John Gray, Owner. 
 
Village Senior Planner Scott Williams described the request before the 
Commission for a Planned Unit Development on a 2-1/2 acre parcel located 
on the west side of Fairview Avenue. The petition is to construct 13 
townhomes on Fairview between 60th and 61st Streets. He provided a detailed 
description of the petition as noted in Staff’s Report (the Report) dated May 7, 
2018, pages 1-11, which contains Staff’s review of the Petitioner’s application 
related to its compliance with Village Ordinance requirements. The site is 
located directly across from property on the east side of Fairview that belongs 
to the Village of Westmont.  
 
The subject property contains two detached houses. The dimensions of the 
property are 536 feet wide by 202 feet deep, and the site will contain the 



 

3 
 

entire residential subdivision. The stormwater drainage area will be located in 
an out lot. There is also a 10’ easement over the storm sewer line as noted in 
Staff’s Report. The site plan depicts the required setbacks based on the lot 
width, as well as the PUD elements that the Petitioner is requesting. Mr. 
Williams described rain gardens that will eventually drain into the outlot for 
stormwater control. There will be two full access points off of Fairview as a 
private road, and that roadway will have permeable pavers. Displaying the 
landscape plan, Mr. Williams said the Petitioner would be adding street trees 
along the right-of-way on Fairview. The five multi-family buildings will be 
located on one lot of record. Mr. Williams displayed photographs of the 
proposed elevation for the buildings under consideration. He explained that 
the Petitioner’s proposal is for 13-unit townhomes in five separate buildings. 
Each unit will have at least three bedrooms with an optional fourth bedroom 
on the 2nd floor. 
 
Mr. Williams described the property as zoned R-1 Residential Detached 
House 1, with a mix of R-1, R-2 and R-3 surrounding single-family residential 
zoning. The Village of Westmont is located directly across to the east on 
Fairview. Mr. Williams said he spoke with the Planner there and the single-
family homes in Westmont across from the subject property are R-2 single-
family detached housing designation. The Village of Downers Grove’s Future 
Land Use Plan describes the subject property as single-family detached 
residential housing. Mr. Williams further explained that the Village’s 
Comprehensive Plan (recently adopted in June of 2017) identifies the subject 
site as single family detached residential in a modified grid pattern as shown 
in Staff’s Report. The petitioner has requested a change in zoning to R-5/PUD 
(Residential Attached House 5/Planned Unit Development) to allow the 
proposed townhome construction. Mr. Williams noted that the Village's Future 
Land Use Plan depicts the property as single-family detached. The 
Comprehensive Plan also identifies single-family detached homes as the 
predominant land use for that site. One of the goals expressed in the 
approved Comprehensive Plan is to preserve and enhance single-family 
neighborhoods. 
 
With regard to the zoning criteria, Mr. Williams pointed out that all of the 
surrounding land uses are single-family detached residential uses. The 
Zoning Ordinance does allow for a single-family subdivision proposal. Staff 
believes the proposal changes the character of the neighborhood and does 
not serve the purpose as a transitional zoning area. He noted that, as stated 
in Staff’s Findings of Fact on pages 7-9 of the afore-mentioned Staff Report, 
the proposal as submitted is not consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, the 
Village's Land Use Plan or the Plan’s Residential Area Plan.  
 
Mr. Williams stated that the proposed PUD, rezoning, and plat of subdivision 
is not compatible with the Comprehensive Plan, the Future Land Use Plan 
and the Residential Area Land Use Plan, the Zoning Ordinance or the 



 

4 
 

Subdivision Ordinance, and the proposal does not provide additional public 
benefits that PUDs should provide. Based on its findings, Staff recommends 
denial of the proposal 
 
Mr. Quirk asked a question about a slide stating that “welfare” was not met. 
Planning Manager Rebecca Leitschuh said that the zoning law term “welfare” 
refers to respecting existing laws and maintaining norms within a community, 
such as the compatibility of a use with other uses in a specified area in 
addition to environmental degradation.   
 
Mr. Kulovany referenced comments he made via email. He asked whether 
Staff would be in favor of the petitioner changing the request to either R-2 or 
R-3 zoning. Mr. Williams replied that they have an out lot to consider, as well 
as stormwater drainage, with additional analysis needed. Mr. Kulovany asked 
whether the lots would support the required onsite stormwater detention 
under the current requirements. Mr. Williams said he did not know, but based 
on the lot dimension they could currently have five single-family zoning lots at 
100 feet wide with room for an outlot. Ms. Leitschuh said that was not the item 
under review, and that they really don’t know whether it would comply without 
reviewing plans, although everything must comply with the stormwater 
ordinance.   
 
Mr. Kulovany then asked about the input from Westmont citizens and whether 
it should be considered by Plan Commission. Mr. Williams replied yes, and 
that he has received calls from Westmont residents. Ch. Rickard added that 
Westmont residents who reside within 250’ of the property received legal 
notification of this petition and they have the right to be heard.  Ms. Leitschuh 
said the Village can take their testimony into account and wants surrounding 
uses to be compatible according to the Comprehensive Plans; however, the 
Village does not regulate over Westmont.  
 
Mr. Kulovany inquired as to how many dwelling units in the Village are zoned 
R-5 or R-5A. Ms. Leitschuh responded that there are about 800 parcels 
zoned R-5 or R-5A, ranging from 2 to 600 dwelling units (Oak Trace). Mr. 
Kulovany then addressed page 41 of the Comprehensive Plan, which 
discusses the need for multi-family living for empty nesters, younger families 
and seniors. He asked whether Staff feels there are enough R-5 or R-5A 
properties that meet that zoning in Downers Grove. Mr. Williams and Mr. 
Leitschuh both replied there is no way to adequately answer that question as 
it would require a full housing analysis conducted by a private entity. The 
Comprehensive Plan is a high level document that spells out certain goals 
identified through the planning process, but the requested level of analysis 
does not currently exist. 
 
Mr. Quirk raised a question regarding Standard 3 on pages 8 and 9 of Staff’s 
Report, which Staff stated has been met about property values. Ms. Leitschuh 



 

5 
 

thanked him for ensuring consistency in the report and presentation, and said 
this is one of seven special items under consideration, not all of them having 
to be met. It is one element of the various elements to be considered in the 
overall request. Mr. Quirk then asked whether Standard 5 is or is not met, to 
which Ms. Leitschuh said it doesn’t apply to this specific request and is not 
relevant to the specific petition.  
 
Mr. Quirk brought up the subdivided vacant land to the north and overall 
implications for modernizing the housing stock and the impact on housing 
values along Fairview Avenue. Ms. Leitschuh said Staff couldn’t speak to the 
properties to the north that have already been subdivided, as there are many 
different components to be considered. For the specific subject property, Staff 
said that the uses as identified by the recently updated Comprehensive Plan 
are still identified as single-family detached single-family residential uses.  
 
Ms. Rollins raised a question about setbacks, and Mr. Williams explained that 
the R-5 designation is a function of lot width and is less restrictive than the 
existing R-1 residential zoning. Mr. Williams said they are looking at this 
proposal as one lot under the PUD process, and the proposed side setbacks 
represents a PUD deviation.  
 
Ms. Leitschuh noted when identifying a street yard (front yard), it is the area 
that fronts or runs parallel to the street, while the rear yard would be directly 
behind the property, opposite the front yard. However, in this situation what 
ends up being a side yard by definition is actually serving as the rear yard for 
two of the five buildings. That is why they are coming in with a PUD with an 
irregular building arrangement.   
 
Mr. Maurer clarified that the rear yard of two of the buildings abuts the side 
yards of adjacent properties due to the location of the private street.  Mr. 
Williams also discussed the R-5 bulk requirements and there is no maximum 
limit to the side setback requirement.  
 
Mr. Quirk asked whether other lot reconfigurations where presented to staff 
and reviewed.  Mr. Williams mentioned one particular proposal had internal 
side lot lines between the buildings.  Ms. Leitschuh followed by stating the 
applicant could address this question better.  Ms. Rollins sought clarify on 
staff’s involvement at the review stage.   
 
Mr. Quirk followed about the density of a nearby multi-family development.   
 
Mr. Boyle raised a question as to Item (6) on page 9 of Staff’s Report and 
how the value to the community was determined, whether it is based on the 
monetary value or zoning. Mr. Williams replied it is based on zoning and the 
Comprehensive Plan’s attempt to have a harmonious interaction among the 
land uses. Ms. Leitschuh said it is not just about the use itself, but also about 



 

6 
 

the use in proximity to its location. There is no disagreement that multi-family 
is valuable as a housing option for the community; however, for this particular 
location, per the appropriately zoned uses, the area is still solely surrounded 
by single-family residential. The use is not compatible with the surrounding 
uses and the guiding regulations of the Comprehensive Plan and the Zoning 
Ordinance.  
 
There being no further comments for Staff at this time, Ch. Rickard called 
upon the petitioner to make its presentation.  
 
Petitioner, Ms. Elaine Kindt of Kindt & Assoc., 1325 Chapman, Darien, 
reviewed the request before the Plan Commission. She noted that the 
development is being named in honor of former Village Mayor Clyde Absher 
who served as a commissioner from 1944-1947 and as Mayor from 1947-
1955.  Ms. Kindt said she has been involved in developing over 400 homes 
and is a 4th generation builder. Their proposal is to construct 13 townhomes 
with permeable pavers and a private driveway, and each home will have front 
and rear porches. She described the materials used for the construction of 
the townhomes including natural stone and architectural shingles, noting that 
sample materials were available for the Commission’s review. The 
townhomes have master bedrooms on the first floor with options for a fourth 
bedroom on the second floor. This provides an option for families with aging 
parents who can occupy the first floor area bedroom. The first floor is open 
concept. She quoted the price level as between $550,000-$575,000.  
 
Ms. Kindt said that they believe their project meets the requirements and 
goals of the Comprehensive Plan. She said she understands that Staff does 
not believe this project meets Village standards; however, Ms. Kindt opined 
that the Comprehensive Plan addresses the need for this type of housing in 
the Village. Eighty percent of residential properties in Downers Grove are 
owner-occupied single-family homes. Single-family residential areas must 
remain flexible and consider context. There may be situations where single-
family attached and multi-family uses may be appropriate within single-family 
detached areas. For example, street frontage, lot depth and the presence of 
neighboring non-residential uses should be considered on a case-by-case 
basis for other types of compatible residential development. In addition, the 
senior population will see the largest increase with ages 65-74 growing by 
25% and ages 75 and up by 16%. The largest increase of households is 
projected to occur among households aged 55 to 74.  
 
The Petitioner continued stating that the age and income shifts projected to 
occur among the Village's household population might have an impact on the 
local demand for a range of housing products. The number of households in 
the 35-54 year-old age is decreasing and the empty nester household is 
growing. Typical empty nester households comprise a significant proportion of 
those purchasing multi-family units. The anticipated growth in the Village's 



 

7 
 

household population over the age of 55 may be accompanied by an 
increased demand for multi-family housing products. Ms. Kindt emphasized 
that the Land Use Plan is a general guideline for growth and development 
within the Village and provides a foundation for further decision-making and is 
not a site development plan. While the detailed document provides specific 
guidance on land use decisions, it is also intended to be sufficiently flexible to 
accommodate unique or compelling circumstances, and the consideration of 
creative approaches to developments that are consistent with the overall 
policies and guidelines in the Comprehensive Plan. The petitioner noted that 
multi-family residential areas provide a wider variety of housing options to 
Village residents, especially to young households, empty nesters and senior 
citizens, all of which have been identified as a growing market in the Village. 
Multi-family residential developments are commonly found along arterial 
streets and often provide a transitional land use between single-family 
residential units and commercial uses. The Petitioner quoted an article from 
the 1978 Downers Grove reporter on the passing of former Mayor Clyde 
Absher, for whom this development is being named. 
 
Mr. Quirk asked regarding the configuration of the lots and other plans. The 
applicant discussed a different Plat of Subdivision arrangement with a lot 
based on the foundation footprint of the unit. Mr. Quirk highlighted the biggest 
deviation is the side setback.  Ms. Leitschuh responded that the first version 
submitted by the Petitioner had independent lots for each building with 
frontage to a public road. The Village no longer allows the creation of private 
roads because of ownership and maintenance issues. She referred to the site 
plan showing a public right of way (Fairview) that disconnects an entire 
development from their detention basin. It results in an island of private 
detention completely surrounded by public Village land. In an effort to not 
create this island, the development would lose its legal frontage to Fairview. 
The location of the detention basin is complicated, and that is why they chose 
one development with all stormwater services connected and one PUD for 
one lot. A later version submitted by the petitioner creates legal lots around 
the footprints of the homes.  Ms. Leitschuh explained that this did not meet 
any subdivision dimensions, but the applicant could later obtain PINs from the 
County for each individual housing unit.  
 
Mr. Kulovany asked under this configuration whether the ownership would be 
considered condominium. Ms. Leitschuh replied that it is one main lot with 
multiple owners, under County taxing with legal ownership of the building. It 
would not include subdividing of the land. Ms. Majauskas asked whether they 
are condominiums or townhomes and the Petitioner stated that each 
individual home would have its own individual PIN number and ownership. 
Ch. Rickard said they are actually proposing two lots, one of which is for the 
PUD and 13 townhomes, and the second lot for the stormwater. Ms. 
Leitschuh explained that there would be two legal descriptions, one for each 
lot as regulated by the Subdivision Ordinance. In the case of a duplex, the 



 

8 
 

two owners would each have a separate PIN number for their duplex, which is 
how the County assesses the tax for the property. How the Petitioner will split 
the proposed buildings for this site is not something that the Village is 
involved in, but relates to how the County assesses it.  
 
Ch. Rickard said the Plan Commission and Village look at zoning issues, 
whether the zoning class, configuration and use is appropriate to the area. 
The physical description of the development including number of bedrooms, 
materials used, floor plans, etc., does not matter. This is a zoning and a use 
issue, and an issue regarding the PUD site plan. 
 
Ms. Majauskas clarified that it would be one lot with multi-family housing with 
the common areas divided however they choose to do so, and the second lot 
would be the detention area. 
 
Ms. Leitschuh said when you create multi-family lots out of one lot, you would 
create a separate outlot for stormwater use.  
 
Mr. Quirk stated one lot simplifies ownership/responsibilities, but wanted to 
discuss a configuration with smaller lots leading to a less restrictive side 
setback requirement.  He also highlighted the design and architectural style 
as it relates to housing values.  Ch. Rickard responded by focusing on the 
plan and how it relates to the criteria.  
 
Mr. Boyle inquired if the owner was available and if they considered other 
uses for the property.  Ms. Kindt responded they had, but the current layout 
and site plan makes the most sense based on stormwater considerations.  
She also mentioned that other builders had looked into a single-family 
development and determined it was not feasible.   
 
Mr. Boyle asked about the stormwater infrastructure requirements for a 
potential single family development.  Ms. Leitschuh emphasized an outlot 
detention would still be required.   
 
Ms. Majauskas asked what would be the highest number of residences that 
could be placed on the property if this property were to remain single-family 
zoning. Mr. Williams answered with based on 100’ width, five would be the 
maximum. 
 
Mr. Kulovany added that if the Plan Commission were asked to change the 
zoning to R-2 they could put six 85’ lots in, or seven lots in R-3, and he 
wondered why the Petitioner chose not to stay within the residential zoning. 
The Petitioner replied that this was the type of home that is being sought in 
Downers Grove.  
 



 

9 
 

There being no further comments, Ch. Rickard called upon the public for any 
comments or questions.  
 
1. Richard Samonte, 6025 Osage has resided in Downers Grove since 
1962. He asked what will separate the townhomes from the adjacent lots, and 
whether the Petitioner will install a fence. He was informed that there is 
currently no fence planned. Mr. Samonte then asked whether the Petitioner 
has done any time studies of middle-school children cutting through that 
property to get to O’Neill School. Staff said no such study has been done. Mr. 
Samonte said the Petitioner would be interested to find out the kind of 
movement that takes place there, especially as it deals with middle-school-
aged children. He asked that some sort of fence barrier be placed between 
the townhomes and the single-family residences that abut the development. 
He believes there is usually an 8’ fence limitation. Mr. Williams said since this 
is residential zoning, the maximum is 6’ height for fencing. Mr. Samonte 
suggested higher than 6’. He asked what approximate tax revenue would 
come out of this development and Mr. Williams said they did not know that at 
this time.  
 
Ch. Rickard said at this level that information is probably not been gathered 
yet. This proposal will go before the Village Council at a later date. Mr. 
Samonte said he asked that question because he was a past School Board 
member and his daughter is on the School Board now. Ms. Leitschuh replied 
that Staff is happy to answer all the questions that will be posed, however, 
she suggested that Staff keep a rolling list of the questions raised and they 
will respond to those questions. As to school donations, anytime there is new 
residential housing added, there will be required school and park donations, 
totaling about $53,000 for District 58, $21,000 for District 99, and $105,000 
for the Park District. She noted that an ex-officio member said he would be in 
support of the proposal for the additional tax donation. 
 
2. William Ponstein of 6012 Hillcrest Court said he owned five lots about 
200’ north of this property, and under current zoning the subject property 
would be about the same as his lots that he is trying to sell. He said as of 
now, he is against the proposal. The people on Osage would be looking at the 
back of a 400’ long building, which will drastically change their view. As for 
the existing property being blighted, he thought there should be rules in the 
Village to encourage the present homeowners to fix their property. He is also 
against any reduction in the side yard setback, as he thinks the 10% should 
hold. He sees this as spot zoning between all R-3 zoning, and the 
Comprehensive Plan says the same thing. 
 
He discussed the history of his property in response to Mr. Quirk.  He replied 
to Mr. Kulovany that his property did not go through a rezoning. He said they 
subdivided the lots in about 2003 or so. 
 



 

10 
 

3. Sherry Laskas of 6003 Fairview lives across from the proposed 
development. She said that the water issues there are major and there is 
flooding. That property should remain single-family detached homes, in-line 
with what she through Mayor Absher would have advocated. The neighbors 
would love to see something done to clean the area, but putting in 
townhomes will not keep with the Village's Comprehensive Plan for single-
family homes. She said they purchased their property because they wanted 
single-family homes, and she doesn’t think the Mayor would like multi-family 
homes in that area. 
 
4. Sonya Bills of 6005 Osage said she lives behind the subject property. 
She’s not happy with the proposal. She would like to see single-family homes. 
Her worry is also with flooding. Her lot does not flood at this time, but the 
giant building may cause her flooding problems. She has had issues in the 
past with the property owners. She’s not sure that just anything would be 
better than what they have now and is concerned with the huge building. 
 
5. Debra Smego of 6009 Osage said her property backs up to the 
proposed development. She reiterated what others said about the storm 
sewer problems. They don’t experience flooding right now, but she is also 
concerned about privacy issues. They will be building close to her property 
line and she would lose privacy and might affect her home’s value. 
 
6. Martha Sheer of 6006 Osage Avenue asked whether the property is 
considered unincorporated, because when they’ve called the police the 
Downers Grove Police do not respond but the State police respond. Ms. 
Leitschuh replied that it is incorporated and is within the municipal limits. She 
will check about police protection and provide that information to the resident. 
Ms. Sheer said she is in the 55-74 year-old range and if she were to purchase 
a townhome it would not be on Fairview Avenue. There are issues with kids 
walking through the property. She then asked who would manage building 
inspections, etc., if the property was unincorporated. Her concern is that the 
property is properly maintained. Ms. Leitschuh said that it would be followed-
up with the Community Development Department Code Enforcement Officers, 
and they should be contacted. She will get back to Ms. Sheer about the 
Police/Fire response. Ms. Sheer added that the traffic will be a nightmare on 
Fairview Avenue with this number of units. She doesn’t support this plan. 
 
The Petitioner responded that no cars will be backing out onto Fairview, but 
will be driving straight out onto Fairview. They do not intend to build a fence 
between the properties but would use landscaping for screening.    
 
Michael Hansen of Watermark Engineering, 2631 Ginger Woods Parkway, 
Aurora, is the Engineer for the site and discussed the stormwater plan, saying 
they would provide storage for onsite and offsite flow in three different areas 
on the site including the rain garden, detention area and piping. He explained 



 

11 
 

how the water would flow through the site. The site is designed for 100-year 
storage. Mr. Maurer asked what a rain garden is.  Mr. Hansen explained that 
a rain garden is a catch basin with native plantings above grade that collects 
rainwater runoff from a variety of sources. In response to Mr. Kulovany, he 
responded that no part of their property drains onto adjacent property.  
 
Ms. Kindt said that people don’t want to live on Fairview in single-family 
homes with small children. Empty nesters don’t have small children. This 
location on Fairview is more for townhome development than it is for single-
family housing.  
 
There being no further input from the audience, Ch. Rickard closed the 
opportunity for further public comment. 
 
Ms. Majauskas said she agrees with Staff and the neighbors, as it feels as 
though the subdivision is being plopped down in the middle of single-family 
homes. The Comprehensive Plan is there for a reason, and citizens and 
developers can rely on that Plan. This development is changing the Plan to fit 
itself into the area. She is hearing talk that there is a need for multi-family 
senior housing, but she has not seen any study, survey or any evidence to 
verify the need. She says there is multi-family housing being built in the 
Village right now that is not selling quickly either. She thinks if this is approved 
they will be setting a dangerous precedent, very early in the new 
Comprehensive Plan.  
 
Ms. Gassen said she also agreed with Staff. She has not seen any other 
multi-family development in the adjacent properties and by doing this they 
would have to be prepared to recommend approval on all the properties in 
that area. 
 
Mr. Kulovany said he disagrees, and thinks there is a bias towards single-
family homes versus high quality townhomes. He attended most of the 
meetings of the Comprehensive Plan Committee and the Plan Commission 
was involved in looking at the Comprehensive Plan. He doesn’t recall any 
discussion of Fairview Avenue and grew up in that area. He thinks if any area 
is transitional that would support a high quality proposal it’s Fairview. He 
further clarified that we’re not talking about low-income apartments, we’re not 
talking about Section 8; the type of person that could afford $550,000 
$575,000 is going to be a respectable person who would certainly take care 
of their property. Two blocks to the north of the area is a church which looks 
like a commercial building. Mr. Ponstein’s property has been vacant for many 
years. There are multi-family residences kitty-corner from the site in 
Westmont. Mr. Kulovany noted that multi-family housing in Downers Grove 
has sold right away. Looking at the Comprehensive Plan it says that younger 
couples, empty nesters and senior citizens have been identified as growing 
markets in the Village and multi-family units are found along arterial streets 



 

12 
 

like Fairview Avenue. Going another block south on Fairview there is a 
commercial district. His point is that the Comprehensive Plan did not look at 
this neighborhood in detail. He doesn’t think Downers Grove is paying 
attention to the market place as necessary. He would like to hear real estate 
people speak to that issue of the market value, and he is in favor of this. 
 
Mr. Quirk said he looked at some research along Fairview Avenue conducted 
around the year 2000. Just south of 63rd Street there was subdivision 
annexed in at R-3 and another classified at R-5. Last year there was a 
petition for the senior community south on Fairview increasing the density on 
Fairview and resulting in a $100 million investment in that site. He thinks big 
single-family lots are not going to make sense on Fairview. Solutions like this 
will. Mr. Quirk said the Village has catalytic sites in the Comprehensive Plan 
that make sense and can solve the problem. Thoughts on density have 
changed. His question is whether it impacts the community in a positive or 
negative way. He wished there was a way to make this less of a variation to 
the standard, even though it’s very difficult on a 550’ wide lot. It creates 
management challenges. He commented on the properties for sale on 
Fairview, enormous lots next to the Racquet Club that people have tried to 
buy and nobody can make it work. He thinks the Village may be passing over 
great opportunities where private citizens are willing to invest. Mr. Quirk noted 
that they have seen apartment projects that have redrawn our density 
tolerances in the downtown and massive outside investment has gone in. He 
commented that he would like to defer to those people that the banks would 
like to lend to who understand the market better than he does. He sees this 
as a common sense approach that we need to figure out. He expressed his 
desire to find a way to place some conditions to a recommendation for this to 
be approved, such as a 6’ fence for residents, or a PUD, or dedicating 
sidewalks for students to go from Westmont to O’Neill. Mr. Quirk did not think 
this would change the characteristics of the neighborhood and it could be a 
catalytic project somewhere along Fairview.   
 
Ch. Rickard noted that Staff has obviously not supported the project, but he 
suggested if it looks like the majority is in favor of approving it, it might be 
better tabling this or continuing it so that Staff has the ability to go back and 
suggest or recommend some modifications to the Plan.  
 
Mr. Quirk referred to other petitions where Staff recommended denial and the 
Board recommended approval for various reasons. He suggested giving Staff 
the opportunity to take another month to craft recommendations for approval 
could result in citing specific conditions, and the Village Council ultimately 
would have the opportunity to say yes or no.  
 
Ch. Rickard noted that people are sharing their thoughts, but he would like 
them to speak to the standards as well since that would be helpful too. The 
ultimate question is whether they meet the standards. 



 

13 
 

 
Ms. Rollins said she struggles with the request to change the zoning from R-1 
to R-5 and feels like there are multiple layers they are asking for. She didn’t 
see another option where the proposal is for R5 without variations.  
 
Ch. Rickard explained that the reason for a PUD is not just to improve density 
but also to get more of a creative layout and provide more flexibility. He thinks 
this is being done just to maximize the property and get as much on it as they 
can. He doesn’t see any other benefit to it other than trying to maximize the 
investment. This will look vastly different than everything else going up on 
Fairview. That’s not necessarily bad but it is a lot different.  
 
Mr. Maurer said he would like some time for Staff to reconsider this with the 
Petitioner. He referred to a meeting held on May 18th of this year. This is a 
quiet location and if there is an opportunity to make this work, he’d love to see 
something like this work on that property, but he’d like to see Staff look at it 
again.  
 
Ch. Rickard said they should prepare some guidelines for Staff. Ms. Leitschuh 
indicated that they would have to provide very specific guidance. From Staff’s 
perspective it is multi-family zoning in a single-family area. Conditions can be 
worked out, but for Staff to go back she doesn’t think the Staff review will 
necessarily be all that different. 
 
Mr. Kulovany suggested that if the Petitioner came forward with seven lots 
and R-3 this discussion wouldn’t be necessary He doesn’t want to be 
insensitive to the neighbors, but if the property has been on the market for 
three years there has to be a reason. The petition may want to work on the 
proposal more.  
 
Ms. Leitschuh said her sense is that based on what is before the Commission 
they should make a recommendation one way or the other. The Petitioner has 
put their time and money into making this proposal. She thinks the 
Commission should make some type of recommendation. If the property were 
split into lots it would be a substitution of nonconformities, so whether it’s 
multiple lots or what is before the Commission, it’s still the same use. It does 
not change the fact that there is a street separating a stormwater detention 
basin and that is why Staff did not support a truly dedicated public street. This 
is a private driveway. No matter the options that have been raised, Staff 
would still not be open to changing its recommendation.  
 
Ms. Rollins clarified if all the options brought to staff had the same layout and 
site plan.  The building locations and sizes did not change, and Ms. Rollins 
expressed an interest in seeing a different configuration with the layout and 
size of the proposed building.  
 



 

14 
 

Ms. Majauskas said that the density here is much different with 13 units, than 
for five single-family homes not shown on this plan. This does not match what 
the Comprehensive Plan envisions. 
 
Ch. Rickard agreed after additional discussion that the Commission should 
vote on this so the Petitioner understands why the Commission doesn’t feel it 
complies. Ms. Leitschuh replied that she thinks the Petitioner is owed some 
kind of response from the Commission. If there are concrete things they can 
make in a Motion, the Petitioner can go back and reconsider their petition. 
 
Mr. Boyle asked if the Comprehensive Plan address housing values and 
changes in the market related to the current use.  Ms. Leitschuh responded 
that the Comprehensive Plan is more general except for certain catalyst sites.  
She added the zoning ordinance looks at if there is possible value, not the 
highest value.      
 
Mr. Quirk moved that the Plan Commission recommend approval to the 
Village Council for a petition seeking approval of a Planned Unit 
Development, a Zoning Map Amendment from R-1, Residential Detached 
House 1 to R-5/PUD, Residential Attached House 5/Planned Unit 
Development, and a Final Plat of Subdivision for Plan Commission Case 
18-PLC-0012 subject to the plans as submitted to the Plan Commission 
for property located on the west side of Fairview Avenue between 60th 
and 61st Streets commonly known as 6000 and 6014 Fairview Avenue.  
 
Mr. Kulovany seconded the Motion with an Amendment that the 
Petitioner works with Staff to create a landscaping plan that would 
create a significant and adequate screening from the adjacent 
properties.  
 
AYES: Mr. Quirk, Mr. Kulovany, Mr. Boyle 
NAYS: Ms. Gassen, Ms. Majauskas, Mr. Maurer, Ms. Rollins, Ch. 
Rickard 
The Motion failed 5:3.  
 
Ch. Rickard said that the Plan Commission recommendation to the Village 
Council will be to deny the request. There will be another Public Hearing by 
the Village Council at a future date.  
 

••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 
 

18-PLC-0011: A petition seeking approval of text amendments to all 
articles of Chapter 28 (Zoning Ordinance) of the Municipal Code of the 
Village of Downers Grove, except Article 1, Introductory Provisions and 
Article 13, Administration and Enforcement. Village of Downers Grove, 
Petitioner. 



 

15 
 

 
Mr. Stan Popovich, Director of Community Development, stated that the 
Village is requesting an amendment to various sections of the Zoning 
Ordinance to implement the Downtown Regulatory Framework and to clarify 
other sections of the Zoning Ordinance. He began by focusing on the 
downtown zoning districts, which were discussed during the Comprehensive 
Plan Update and Downtown Regulatory Framework.  The Framework was 
approved in January of 2018 by the Village Council. The next step is to 
amend the Zoning Ordinance to meet the regulatory framework and the goals 
of the Comprehensive Plan. He provided a background review of the 
discussions held by the Comprehensive Plan Committee, Plan Commission, 
Council, downtown property owners, and Staff to arrive at the 
recommendations for text amendments. To use a flight analogy, the 
Comprehensive Plan is at 40,000 feet, the Framework at 10,000 feet, and the 
Zoning Ordinance is on the ground for day to day operations. 
 
The Framework envisioned four districts; however, after multiple public 
meetings, it was determined that 90% of the Framework can be attained 
maintaining DB and DT districts with slight modifications and the new addition 
of a Downtown Core (DC) district. Both bulk and use modifications are 
proposed. Director Popovich emphasized that no properties are being 
rezoned at this time, and that only text amendments are before the 
Commission for their review. 
 
Director Popovich detailed the proposed changes to the Zoning Ordinance 
text intended to implement the Framework as discussed in the staff report, 
including adding DC to bulk requirements (Table 4-2), the use table (Table 5-
1) and the sign chapter. In addition to typical discussions, staff is requesting 
additional Commission discussion on three specific items: attached and two-
unit houses in the DB, Bed & Breakfasts in the DB, and assembly uses in the 
downtown. 
 
Mr. Popovich then reviewed the second category of amendments.  These 
included clarifying only one building is allowed on a single lot of record; 
changes to the Personal Improvement Services use category in Section 5; 
minor changes to the use table; extending the downtown parking exemption 
to the Fairview Concentrated Business District; reducing the required 
minimum driveway width from 10 feet to nine feet and authorizing driveway 
width reductions as administrative adjustments.  Additionally, the 
modifications include a provision under mechanical screening requirements to 
consider the setback distance from the building façade, and some minor 
modifications to permitted encroachments and definitions.   
 
Ch. Rickard opened up the floor for Commission discussion. Mr. Maurer said 
Council’s direction was to decrease intensity of multi-family, yet by changing 
apartments in DB/DT from a Special Use to Permitted, it seemed counter to 



 

16 
 

that interest. Mr. Kulovany was concerned that developers could just pull 
permits if the bulk standards were addressed. Ms. Gassen said it would be 
difficult to meet the suggested density numbers, when they should be 
encouraging density in the downtown. Mr. Maurer was not supportive of 
increased density, and supported leaving the approval process as a Special 
Use. Ms. Majauskas thought the Special Use helped to control downtown, 
and discussions, like tonight, were needed to keep control of it. Ms. Gassen 
commented that the Marquis on Maple development met all density/bulk 
requirements, and only came before the Commission because it was a 
Special Use. Without the Special Use process, there would have been no 
public input. Mr. Quirk disagreed with the current density requirement, saying 
it won’t enable development and that he still supports greater density. About 
the downtown, he stated, “It’s urban.” He likes the 35 foot height cap for DT. 
Mr. Kulovany said the younger generation is not as concerned with internal 
space, but want amenities.  
 
There being no further comments, Ch. Rickard called upon the public for any 
comments or questions.  
 
1. Willis Johnson, 603 Rogers, expressed concern about the overall 
process as he tries to keep track of the repeated changes over the course of 
the downtown discussions and proposed amendments. He is unclear of what 
the final results will be. 
 
2. Jim Krusenoski, 853 Maple, said he does not want zero foot setbacks 
and 60 foot tall buildings across the street from his property, a single family 
Victorian home. He supports keeping apartments/condos as a Special Use. 
 
There being no further input from the audience, Ch. Rickard closed the 
opportunity for further public comment. 
 
Ms. Majauskas opined that attached and two-unit housing should definitely be 
removed from DB, but DT is a different discussion.  She said in her opinion 
duplexes are asking for trouble in so many ways, and she questioned why 
they would allow that. She would be in favor of a four-unit condo-type 
structure but not a duplex.  
 
Mr. Quirk stated that condos are different than apartments, as condos are 
residential whereas apartments are really commercial structures. He thinks 
apartments are appropriate but that townhomes/duplexes should not be 
allowed in a downtown business area. Ch. Rickard agreed to remove 
attached housing from DB and leave in DT. There was no opposing comment, 
although Ms. Majauskas said she didn’t know if she agreed because she 
believes duplexes spell disaster in so many different ways. She said if 
everyone else agrees, however, they can move on.  
 



 

17 
 

The Commission also agreed that Bed and Breakfast should be removed 
from DB, and come in as a Special Use in DT. Ms. Gassen stated that makes 
sense because an older home to be modified as a B&B is more of a 
transitional thing. Mr. Quirk stated the next step would be to discuss AirBNBs. 
 
The Commission agreed to maintain Assembly as a Special Use. 
 
Ms. Gassen reintroduced the request to keep condo/apartments as a Special 
Use. Concern was expressed as to the minimum lot area per dwelling unit 
numbers submitted, with Mr. Maurer stating that “1800 was really high” Ms. 
Gassen acknowledged she was concerned what Village Council might 
change the numbers and decrease the density, but not provide an additional 
level of review by changing apartments/condos from a Special Use to a 
Permitted use. 
 
Mr. Kulovany said he was surprised there has not been any public discussion, 
but based on the public sentiment, he thinks it was clear that the public 
wanted to look at these things beforehand.  He thinks this is moving totally 
against public sentiment. They should have the opportunity to take a look at 
this and ask meaningful questions. The idea that a fence goes up and they 
start digging a hole, and then people say, “Oh, what are they building? We 
didn’t even know they were going to do that. At least here they can come to a 
public hearing.” 
 
Ms. Rollins agreed that this should be kept as a Special Use, and if the 
Village Council chooses to change that, that is their prerogative, but at least it 
brings it to the table for discussion. Ms. Gassen said she would not be 
concerned if the density numbers are hard to attain, but if those change then 
in favor of a Special Use. 
 
Ms. Majauskas said she was in favor of keeping the density low. She said the 
Village can always say that they can build a smaller unit, however, once you 
get several tiny condos you are suddenly asking for a lower quality building 
just because of the size of the individual units.  She expressed her concern 
about the ambience or quality the Village is attempting to maintain, especially 
in the downtown area. If they let density go haywire, they will lose control. 
She said 400 square feet is the size of a hotel room. Mr. Maurer was 
explained to her that the number 400 refers to how many square feet of land 
is needed to build a unit, and does not represent the size of the unit. So if you 
have 3,600 square foot lot, and a FAR of 1,800, you can have two dwelling 
units. 
 
Mr. Quirk discussed sharing living space by dividing apartments as a trend in 
Chicago. Ms. Rollins remarked that dorms are already following suit. Mr. 
Popovich clarified that a household is defined in the Village Ordinances, to 
limit the number of people that are unrelated from forming a household. 



 

18 
 

 
Mr. Quirk stated that we are plagued as a community that is exceptionally 
difficult to get things done, and more special review, input, and vision makes it 
more difficult for a developer to get something done. Which is why having 
standards in place, if we do XYZ, they know what is expected. If you have 
multiple reviews like other communities (zoning, design, architecture) it’s 
really tough, and if you compare it to our peers, we are viewed as difficult. 
Yes, we should have some control and that line needs to be set, but be 
mindful that that control makes it difficult for people. 
 
Ch. Rickard has heard similar concerns for certain projects, but having 
performed work in every northern Illinois municipality has heard that some 
communities are easier, and others are far more difficult. Mr. Quirk stated he 
doesn’t apply this to larger projects, but smaller businesses (e.g., a vet clinic) 
our standards are so prescriptive, it’s not staff, it’s us as a community that 
impose that on people. 
 
Ms. Majauskas commented that when developers come into a village, in her 
opinion they have a very selfish viewpoint. They come in to maximize their 
profits and then they want to get out. They don’t really care what happens 
after they sell. When you start letting everyone do what they want, maximize 
their profit and then leave, that’s a big danger. Developers are not there to 
make the Village look fabulous and be a great place to live. They are just 
looking to maximize their profit. For that reason she thinks a Special Use 
designation is not bad. She said developers should answer how serious are 
you? How much are you going to give back to the Village?   
 
Ch. Rickard said he thought feedback was provided and asked that someone 
make a motion with any amendments or conditions, Mr. Quirk suggested that 
they use the most recent approved development densities as the base for 
their recommended downtown density. Mr. Kulovany believed the density 
exceptions almost become standards because subsequent petitioners could 
request the same sizes as approved previously. Mr. Popovich said they can 
look back historically, but ultimately every petition stands alone as a Special 
Use and goes to Council. Ch. Rickard agreed that petitioners probably do go 
back historically to see what has been approved and how their request 
compares to previous plans.  
 
Mr. Quirk said there is the potential they are not approved, and for property 
owners and businesses better to know what is expected. There should be a 
standard. There needs to be a reasonable line. 
 
Ms. Rollins said she airs on the other side, that if people don’t get an 
opportunity to voice their opinion on a large project that decreases those 
numbers, it just happens in their backyard. You are eliminating an opportunity 
is eliminated for the public to participate, and instead development just 



 

19 
 

happens in their backyard. The Commission has added fences, lighting, made 
sure neighbor concerns are heard and respected. Even if not in line with 
standards, there are many positive things that come out from the process. Mr. 
Quirk said things are going to stop for a while, that the next DB project will 
have to put together multiple parcels and ask for 300SF density potentially 
and point back to previous multi-family approvals. Listen to resident concerns, 
and talk about property taxes, and we are just going to say yes. He would 
prefer to just find “that number” and be more rigid. Mr. Boyle stated as soon 
as you find “that number”, won’t someone try to lower it. Mr. Kulovany 
suggested “that number” and adding 20%.   
 
Mr. Maurer replied that we must at least bring people to the table. It takes 
months of work and tens of thousands of dollars to calibrate these larger 
proposals. He doesn’t think they should set the number based on the last 
development and hopes they have had enough of that for now. He thinks they 
have to add the 20% or some kind of brakes to multi-family development that 
has added enough to traffic and is now no longer selling so just decreasing 
property values.   
 
Mr. Kulovany said he thinks adding the percentage option allows a 
conversation around the number. Mr. Quirk said if more than 20-25 units are 
proposed, it’s a Special Use, Ms. Rollins agreed. And if you need something 
other than 600SF, then you need to make the case. Ms. Gassen said it is 
important for the residents to just see what’s going to happen. Mr. Kulovany 
asked Mr. Popovich whether the developers the Plan Commission has 
worked with in the past felt that going before the Plan Commission for Special 
Uses was particularly arduous or unreasonable. Mr. Popovich said it is a 
matter of time for their projected timeline, and seeing what the community will 
support. Mr. Kulovany said the things that come out of these discussions on 
Special Uses have been invaluable such as fencing, not having trash on 
Ogden and Main Street, etc. Those items came out of resident concerns and 
were reasonable requests. Ch. Rickard said they are site specific and based 
on proximity, not just density and numbers. 
 
Ch. Rickard suggested that they were ready to submit a Motion. Discussion 
centered on crafting a motion based on their conversation.  
 
Mr. Kulovany said it could be argued that anyone walking to the train station 
is not competing with other drivers on congested roads. He asked from those 
who argue against more density what their complaint is with people walking 
from the train station, versus driving on congested expressways. 
 
Ms. Majauskas asked if the only permitted use in Downtown Business is 
retail. Mr. Popovich read a list of other permitted uses including personal 
services, restaurants, wine boutique, financial services, residential use, etc. A 



 

20 
 

Special Use is currently required for any apartment/condo, including second 
story units above retail space. 
 
Mr. Quirk does not believe a second floor above commercial space should 
require a Special Use depending on the number of units. Ms. Gassen replied 
she did not know what the right threshold would be.  
 
Mr. Boyle asked if combining properties would come before Plan 
Commission, which is not required.  
 
Mr. Kulovany commented that he would be more comfortable if they had a 
Special Use because if they try to come up with a number tonight it would be 
pulled out of the air. The residents have spoken loudly and clearly and want 
to be heard and have a peak beforehand, and have opportunity for residents 
to ask questions.  
 
Ms. Gassen commented that Plan Commission is keeping apartment/condo 
as it exists in their recommendation; just going from two to three districts in 
the downtown all of which currently require Special Uses for 
apartment/condo. 
 
The Commission further discussed the appropriate density threshold, and 
whether a Special Use or Permitted use adequately reviewed multi-family in 
the downtown. 
  
Mr. Quirk sought clarification whether adding a couple apartments above 
existing commercial space, mixed-use, or adding a unit was Permitted or 
Special Use, to which Mr. Popovich replied that a Special Use is currently 
required. Commissioners expressed support of second story residential units, 
but that Special Use review should not be removed. 
 
Mr. Quirk made a point that the density standard is purely a guideline, and it 
is not a standard because the Commission has always given permission for 
different densities. Mr. Popovich stated that Marquis on Maple met the 
standards, not requesting a PUD but came in complying with the density 
requirement.  
 
Mr. Kulovany said that the way this reads right now, someone could buy the 
Subway and parking lot area and put anything in there, by right.  
 
Mr. Quirk asked what triggers a PUD. Mr. Popovich explained there are 
specific objectives in the Zoning Ordinance including providing a greater 
public benefit. Often the development cannot be accomplished following the 
standard requirements, and the PUD allows the opportunity to control unique 
requirements and design. The Village expects certain benefits out of the 
proposal, including public benefits, seating, additional design quality. The 



 

21 
 

development must be built to plan, withstanding small tweaks. But major 
changes required it to go back to the Commission for more review and 
control. 
 
Ms. Leitschuh explained that a Special Use is not an approval tool to adjust 
density, but that a variation request or PUD would have to accompany the 
petition. 
 
Ms. Majauskas said her suggestion at this time would be to leave it as is 
because they are trying to pull things out of the air. She supports 
recommending a Special Use, but as far as recommending specific numbers, 
they have no idea what the impact of those numbers would be. 
Commissioners agreed. 
 
Ms. Gassen moved that with respect to 18-PLC-0011 the Plan 
Commission approve the Text Amendments for Chapter 28 of the 
Municipal Code with changes discussed which were that Assembly and 
Entertainment would be switched to Special Use in Downtown Business 
and Downtown Core, Apartments and Condos will be Special Use in the 
Downtown Core, Downtown Transition and Downtown Business, 
remove Bed and Breakfast from the Downtown Business District, and 
remove Attached House and Two-Unit Houses from the Downtown 
Business District. Mr. Kulovany seconded the Motion. 
 
AYES: Ms. Gassen, Mr. Kulovany, Mr. Boyle, Ms. Majauskas, Mr. 

Maurer, Ms. Rollins, Ch. Rickard 
NAYS: Mr. Quirk 
The Motion passed 7:1  
 
Mr. Quirk commented that the motion did not address the previous discussion 
or recent trends based on the previous approvals Plan Commission has seen 
in the last several years, and that the density needs to be adjusted 
accordingly. 
 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 
 
5. DISCUSSION ON PLAN COMMISSION REPORTS AND MEETING 
FORMATS 
 
Director Popovich said that modifications have been recommended for the 
Plan Commission meetings placing more emphasis on the Petitioner and the 
Petitioner’s responsibilities. He explained that Staff will no longer write out 
findings of the Standards of Approval and there will be standard forms 
attached to Staff’s report based on the Petitioner’s request. A handout 
explaining the changes was submitted to the Commissioners in their packets. 
Staff will make a recommendation at Plan Commission after all testimony 



 

22 
 

including the petitioner’s presentation and public comment is provided. The 
following are the modified procedures to be followed: 
 
1. Petitioner will petition for their project 
 
2. Staff Reports 
 Continue to describe and analyze project 
 Findings of Fact/Standards of Approval are listed but not flushed out 
 Petitioner has the responsibility to document that the standards are 
met 
 A standard form will be attached to the report 
 Staff’s recommendation will be removed 
 A Motion will be provided for the Plan Commission to make 
 
3. Plan Commission Meeting 
 Petitioner will present first 

 Commissioners will ask questions 
 Public Comments will be taken 
 Staff presents its report 
 Staff recommendation 
 Petitioner’s closing statement 
 Commissioners deliberate on the Standards 
 Commission makes a Motion 
 
4. Village Council Meeting 
 Acceptance of Plan Commission minutes 
 
 
Mr. Popovich explained that items will not go to Council before minutes are 
reviewed and approved by Plan Commission to guarantee their accuracy. Mr. 
Boyle asked if that would slow the approval process, to which Mr. Popovich 
replied that usually no significant delay would occur assuming Plan 
Commission met monthly. 
 
Ms. Gassen asked for a text summary of the changes. 
 
Director Popovich said they intend to implement these changes at the next 
meeting. There will be specific forms for the Petitioner’s request. He said that 
Staff would screen the Petitioner’s application to assure that the applicant 
addresses all requirements. 
 
Mr. Quirk asked how the review of a PUD would come before them without 
staff’s support. Mr. Popovich stated that staff we still assist people. Ms. 
Leitschuh explained we still work with the applicants, regarding the proposal 
and the standards. Mr. Rickard identified that the Commission may have to 
draw out the standards from some of the applicants, by questioning them. Ms. 



 

23 
 

Rollins said she would like guidelines for the applicant’s presentation. Mr. 
Popovich said the more professional applicants should have the knowledge to 
convey the required information, and that staff will work with residents and 
small businesses. 
 
Mr. Kulovany asked about the primary motivation for these changes. Director 
Popovich responded that residents believe that Staff is making the petition to 
Council and advocating on behalf of the Petitioner. He explained that the 
Commission can still ask questions of Staff, and that Staff will still be involved 
in the application submitted by the petitioner. 
 
Ms. Leitschuh said this will be a learning process for everyone. Mr. Popovich 
and Ch. Rickard acknowledged other communities follow a similar public 
hearing process. 
 
6. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business, Ch. Rickard called for a Motion to Adjourn. 
 
Ch. Rickard adjourned the meeting by voice vote at 10:25 PM. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Tonie Harrington, 
Recording Secretary  
(transcribed from mp3 recording) 
 
 
  
 


